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Watkins, Robert

From: Watkins, Robert
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2020 12:09 PM
To: jb@bdarchitects.com
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: February BAR Action - 409 Ridge Street

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 20-02-03 
409 Ridge Street 
Tax Parcel 290135000 
Miles Hingeley and Ashley Morse, Owner; Jeff Bushman, Bushman Dreyfus Architects, Applicant 
Two-story porch addition, new shutters and dormers, new roof 
 
Dear Jeff, 
 
Please find below the action taken for the above-referenced project at last night’s Board of Architectural 
Review meeting: 
 
Jody Lahendro moved having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including the City Design 
Guidelines for New Construction and Additions, I move to find the proposed additions satisfy the BAR’s criteria 
and are compatible with this property and other properties in the Ridge Street ADC District, with the following 
modifications: 

 The applicant will submit window cut sheets to staff to confirm they adhere to our guidelines. 
 The applicant will submit drawings of the rear yard steps to staff to confirm they match what was 

discussed at the meeting.  
Carl Schwarz seconded. Approved (6-0). 
 
For more information regarding this certificate of appropriateness and the length of its validity, please see City 
Code Section 34-280. Validity of certificates of appropriateness. 
 
Have a great day! 
 
Robert 
 
Robert Watkins 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
Neighborhood Development Services 
PO Box 911 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
(434) 970-3398 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

STAFF REPORT  

February 19, 2020 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

BAR 20-02-03 

409 Ridge Street; Tax Parcel 290135000 

Miles Hingeley and Ashley Morse, Owner; 

Jeff Bushman, Bushman Dreyfus Architects, Applicant 

Two-story porch addition, new shutters and dormers, new roof 

  

 
 

Background 

Year Built: 2004 

District: Ridge Street ADC 

Status: Contributing (Note: The original house, the Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House, 

c1842, was destroyed in 1994 by a falling tree. However, the current house is still 

identified as contributing. In any event, regardless of the year built, the parcel is 

within an ADC, and any new construction or alteration to an existing structure is 

subject to BAR review.) 

 

Prior BAR Actions 

None 

 

Application 

 Applicant submittal: Bushman Dreyfus Architects drawings Ridge Street Additions, dated 

January 29, 2020: Cover with sheets A-1 through A-16.   

 

Request for a Certificate of Appropriates in an ADC District for: alterations to the rear (west) 

elevation including construction of a 2-story addition and porch; and construction on the side 

(north) elevation of a single-story mudroom/entry. 

 

Discussion 

In the context of the existing additions at the rear and side, to the 2004 brick house, staff finds 

the proposed work to be consistent with the character of the 2004 house. In addition, the house 
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roof will be replaced with standing seam metal, which will be also be installed on the new work. 

The brick foundation of the house is continued for the additions and the proposed painted siding 

is consistent with the existing additions, distinguishing them from house itself.   

 

The application clearly communicates a sense of the project’s scale, materiality, and general 

appearance, which staff finds consistent with the design guidelines. However, the application 

lacks several specific details, including door and window cut sheets, drawings of the new 

operable shutters, and detailed drawings of the new porch, stairs, and railings. The building is not 

historic but the BAR might request further details to better understand the project. 

 

Should additional information be requested, staff recommends deferral of this request until the 

March 2020 BAR meeting.  

 

Suggested Motions 

Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 

Guidelines for Rehabilitations, I move to find that the proposed window replacement satisfies the 

BAR’s criteria and is compatible with this property and other properties in the Ridge Street ADC 

District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. 

 

(or with the following modifications/conditions…)  

 

Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 

Guidelines for Rehabilitations, I move to find that the proposed window replacement does not 

satisfy the BAR’s criteria and is not compatible with this property and other properties in the 

Ridge Street ADC District, and that for the following reasons the BAR denies the application as 

submitted. 

 

Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 

Review Criteria Generally 

Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall 

approve the application unless it finds: 

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or 

applicable provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to 

Sec.34-288(6); and 

(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the 

district in which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the 

application. 

 

Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed 

addition, modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the 

site and the applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and 

placement of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 

Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;  
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(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as 

gardens, landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an 

adverse impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 

(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 

 

Pertinent Design Review Guidelines for Additions. 

P. ADDITIONS 

1) Function and Size 

a) Attempt to accommodate needed functions within the existing structure without building 

an addition. 

b) Limit the size of the addition so that it does not visually overpower the existing building. 

2) Location 

a) Attempt to locate the addition on rear or side elevations that are not visible from the 

street. 

b) If additional floors are constructed on top of a building, set the addition back from the 

main façade so that its visual impact is minimized. 

c) If the addition is located on a primary elevation facing the street or if a rear addition faces 

a street, parking area, or an important pedestrian route, the façade of the addition should 

be treated under the new construction guidelines. 

3) Design 

a) New additions should not destroy historic materials that characterize the property. 

b) The new work should be differentiated from the old and should be compatible with the 

massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the 

property and its environment. 

4) Replication of Style 

a) A new addition should not be an exact copy of the design of the existing historic 

building. The design of new additions can be compatible with and respectful of existing 

buildings without being a mimicry of their original design. 

b) If the new addition appears to be part of the existing building, the integrity of the original 

historic design is compromised and the viewer is confused over what is historic and what 

is new. 

5) Materials and Features 

a) Use materials, windows, doors, architectural detailing, roofs, and colors that are 

compatible with historic buildings in the district. 

6) Attachment to Existing Building 

a) Wherever possible, new additions or alterations to existing buildings should be done in 

such a manner that, if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the 

essential form and integrity of the buildings would be unimpaired. 

b) The new design should not use the same wall plane, roof line, or cornice line of the 

existing structure. 



Appendix: 

Staff Site Visit Photos, February 7, 2020 

 

Figure 1: Oblique view, facing northwest, of subject building in context of neighboring buildings. 409 Ridge Street at left. 

 

Figure 2: Oblique view, facing northwest, of subject building. 



 

Figure 3: East elevation of subject building. 

 

Figure 4: Oblique view, facing southwest, of subject building. 











Owner Name HltV�etey 

Address: B 1,,/) e €115' r ltk6 H- .J� 

Board of Architectural Review (BAR) 
Conservation District - Certificate of Appropriateness 
Please Return To: City of Charlottesville 
Department of Neighborhood Development Services 
P.O. Box 911, City Hall 
Charlottesville, Virginia 22902 
Telephone (434) 970-3130 

Please submit ten (10) hard copies and one (1) digital copy of application form and all attachments. 

Please include application fee as follows: New construction project $375; Demolition of a contributing structure $375; 
Appeal of BAR decision regarding new construction or demolition $125. Make checks payable to the City of Charlottesville. 

No fee required for: Additions and other projects requiring BAR approval and not listed above; Administrative approvals; 
Appeals of BAR decisions if the original application was not subject to an application fee. 
The BAR meets the third Tuesday of the month. 
Deadline for submittals is Tuesday 3 weeks prior to next BAR meeting by 3:30 p.m. 

Project Name/Description -ft>"? /?I P6£: STPcf:;T: Parcel Number '2--,JD 11 [oo 

Location. ;.__..c..2 --' ;;__,6--',:__ "--'-- _ �---------Project Address/ _iY> __ /</ /) C_S"_�_.;;;...-=---'-I _,__. ___;:._C_--'V---'-1 vl-__ 

I 11,�J(i' , Applicant Name B ti I 1/Mf)./V Qfl_(f"Yfi1J J'f �I-} 
1 

i> 

Applicant Information 

Email: J 71'@) 8/5,k�a-h]i;;"c... TS� 22)� 
Phone: (W)--=-�,........,,----,-- (H) _____ _ 

�14 .'Z+-Z-. l+-S-,r 

Property Owner Information (if not applicant} 

/l-l 0-6€ 5772'1:f13T Address: f 'P1 

Email:A:£+1:W'/ M 1l]�.,5G @6/n?f/1.,,.-2d � 
Phone: (W) _______ (H) _____ _ 

""tY-t: t,t �� "?JJ I 

Date 

XPF BtJf"ffl??Ali I -Z..9-.U 
Print Name Date 

Property owner Permission m not appljcano 
I have read this application and hereby give my consent to 
its submission. 

Signature Date 

Print Name Date 

Descri <;_e:;_'€ ,1--n_��-/f,_Yn_g,_� r_._ ption of Proposed Work (attach separate narrative if necessary): __ __ __ __ 

List All Attachments (see reverse side for submittal requirements): 

For Office Use Only Approved/Disapproved by: ________ _ 
Received by: __________ _ Date: ______________ _ 
Fee paid: ____ Cash/Ck.# ___ _ Conditions of approval: _________ _ 
Date Received: _________ _ 
Revised April 2017 
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Mr. Jeff Werner 
City of Charlottesville
PO Box 911 
Charlottesville VA  22902 

Subject: Application for Certificate of Appropriateness, 409 Ridge Street 

Dear Jeff Werner, 

On behalf of the owners of 409 Ridge Street, we ask the BAR to review and approve the
attached application for a Certificate of Appropriateness. 

Location 

This property is within the Ridge Street ADC District. The current house dates from 2004. The
current house replaces what was known as the Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House, dating from
1842, once the oldest structure on Ridge Street, destroyed in 1994 when a large tree fell on it. 

Scope 

In general the spirit of this project is to bring as much “old-world” integrity to this existing house
as makes sense to do within the scope of work outlined below: 

1. Removal of existing rear appurtenances, stairs, and deck
2. A two-story porch addition on the back—also containing dining room and bedroom upstairs
3. A mudroom addition on the right—also screening and organizing mechanical equipment
4. New operating shutters on the front and new attic dormers to replace skylights on the back
5. New standing seam painted metal roof over all—removal of existing metal fireplace flue 

Removal of existing rear appurtenances, stairs, and deck 

These are currently in terrible condition, despite their supposed plastic and vinyl longevity. The
flashing is not keeping water out. The sooner these parts go, the better. 

A two-story porch addition on the back—also containing dining room and bedroom
upstairs. 

The house presents a tricky design challenge in that the existing ground floor pushes two feet
beyond the upper floor. This design works to cleanup the apparent masonry footprint of the
house and create a clean distinction between porch and house. 

Existing windows adjacent to the porch are replaced with new french doors. New windows are
double-hung without screens. 

The cornice line reinforces the distinction with a change in overhang, and a gap between old and
new fascia. 

The porch is supported on a new brick foundation. The new brickwork is distinguished from
existing by a compatible but subtle change in color, combined with the introduction of jack 

Bushman Dreyfus Architects PC
820b East High Street Charlottesville, Virginia  22902  Telephone  434.295.1936 



Mr. Jeff Werner 

arches over the openings in the wall. 

Generally, materials may be described as follows: 

Siding and trim a fiber-cement wood alternative. 
Screen frame black aluminum 2” tube with hinged screen door 
Windows and doors white aluminum-clad with true divided lite sash 
Shutters painted wood. 
Handrails painted steel. 
Brick foundation compatible color and mortar—but not identical 
Roof painted galvanized steel or aluminum 

A mudroom addition on the right—also screening and organizing mechanical equipment. 

Active families need places to unload their gear, and meters, and condensing units and such
need a place to hide. The mud room carries forward the general flavor of the existing porch, but
is enlarged for this purpose, with a small lowered area below sized to hold, screen, and properly
ventilate the equipment. 

New operating shutters on the front and new attic dormers to replace skylights on the
back. 

The existing shutters are screwed to the wall, with inverted louvers.
The new dormers are sheathed in sheet metal, are detailed simply, and become part of the
roofscape. 

New standing seam painted metal roof over all—removal of existing metal fireplace flue. 

The old metal flue will be removed and replace with a through-wall B-vent for the living room
fireplace.
Existing roof and porch roof will be matching standing-seam painted metal, feeding white gutters
and downspouts in a color matching the trim and siding color (white). 

Please reply if with any questions or comments you may have. 

Looking forward to discussing this with the BAR on February 28th. 

Sincerely, 

Jeff Bushman 
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409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

JANUARY 28, 2020 

SHEET INDEX 

A-1 ADC DISTRICT MAP 
A-2 PHOTOS OF ORIGINAL1842 HOUSE 
A-3 TREE DAMAGE AND DEMOLITION 
A-4 EXISTING HOUSE BUILT IN 2004 
A-5 PLAT 
A-6 BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN 
A-7 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
A-8 SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
A-9 WEST ELEVATION 
A-10 SOUTH ELEVATION 
A-11 EAST ELEVATION 
A-12 NORTH ELEVATION 
A-13 PORCH ADDITION VIEW 1 

BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC A-14 PORCH ADDITION VIEW 2 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET, CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 A-15 AERIAL 1 
www.bdarchitects.com A-16 AERIAL 2 

http:www.bdarchitects.com
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1/8 INCH EQUALS 1 FT 

409 RIDGE STREET 
DRAWING OF EXISTING STREET FRONT 

ADC DISTRICT MAP 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 

A-1 



PHOTOS OF ORGINAL 1842 HOUSE 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 

1/28/20 
A-2



TREE DAMAGE AND DEMOLITION 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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EXISTING NORTH ENTRY 

EXISTING NORTH ENTRY EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION 

EXISTING BACK PORCH 

EXISTING HOUSE BUILT IN 2004 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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PLAT 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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NEW MUD ROOM 
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BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 1/8"   =    1'-0" A-6 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 
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BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 1/8"   =    1'-0" A-7 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 



PORCH AND MUDROOM ADDITIONS 
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SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
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REMOVE EXISTING METAL FLUE 

NEW TDL ALUMINUM CLAD 
CASEMENT - DORMER IS SHEATHED 
IN MATCHING ROOF SHEET METAL 

NEW STANDING SEAM METAL 
ROOF 

PAINTED FIBER-CEMENT 
WOOD DETAILING AND SIDING 
TYPICAL 

SOLID PAINTED GUARD 

BLACK ANONDIZED 2" SCREEN 
FRAME - TYPICAL 

SOLID PAINTED GUARD 

JACK ARCH DETAILING FOR UNDER 
PORCH STORAGE AREA 

WEST ELEVATION 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 3/16" =    1'-0" A-9 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 



  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

  
 

 
 



REMOVE EXISTING METAL FLUE 

NEW STANDING SEAM 
ROOF 

NEW OPERABLE SHUTTERS 

NEW MUDROOM 

EXISTING FENCE NOT SHOWN 

REPLACE EXISTING 
STAIRS 

EAST ELEVATION 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 3/16" =    1'-0" A-11 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 



EXISTING STRUCTURE | NEW ROOF PORCH ADDITION 

NEW METAL SHEATHED DORMER MATCHES ROOF 

NEW STANDING SEAM ROOF 

TDL DOUBLE-HUNG WINDOWS TYPICAL FOR ALL NEW WORK 

FIBER-CEMENT PAINTED SIDING AND TRIM 
SIDING IS NICKEL-GAP SHIPLAP, 6" EXPOSURE 

PAINTED ALUMINUM DOWNSPOUTS AND GUTTER 

BLUESTONE STEPS AND LANDING 

PAINTED STEEL GUARD 

MECHANICAL AREAWAY BELOW MUDROOM 

MUDROOM ADDITION 

NORTH ELEVATION 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 1/28/20 
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PORCH ADDITION VEIW 1 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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PORCH ADDITION VIEW 2 
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AERIAL 1 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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AERIAL 2 
BUSHMAN DREYFUS ARCHITECTS, PC 
820-B EAST HIGH STREET CHARLOTTESVILLE VA 22902 409 RIDGE STREET ADDITIONS 
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